Murehx, CiaraM

From: Ohara, Mary (Alab)

Sent: 07 June 2019 16:39

To: Murphy, CiaraM

Subject: FW: GBASC Submission in relation to T06/202 Appeal

Attachments: MH_overstocking_documents_11.09.17_reduced(1).pdf; DCCAE and IFI Comment on

Marine Institute Report on sea lice levels on marine salmon farms during February
2019 DCCAE.doc; GBASC submission to ALAB re MOWI Appeal.pdf

From: Billy Smyth [

Sent: 07 June 2019 16:32

To: Ohara, Mary (Alab)

Subject: GBASC Submission in relation to T06/202 Appeal

CAUTION: This email originated from outside of the organisation. Do not click links or open attachments
unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Aquaculture Licences Appeal Board
To whom it concerns,

Attached is a submission from Galway Bay Against Salmon Cages in support of Minister Michael Creeds
decision to treat as discontinued MOWTI Licence T06/202.

Also attached are Documents supplied to GBASC by Friends of the Irish Environment which we have
permission to use. We also attach a DCCAE document which was sent to DAMF on the 4th April 2019
requesting that three salmon farms be harvested out/shut down because of uncontrollable sea lice
infestations since last November. DCCAE also had serious concerns about another salmon farm at Killary
Harbour. Attached also is a Dail PQ by Cathrine Connolly TD.

Billy Smyth
Chairman, Galway Bay Against Salmon Cages.

Virus-free. www.avg.co
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Aquaculture Licences Appeal Board, 7/06/2019
Kilminchy Court,

Dublin Rd.

Portlaoise, Co. Laois.

Galway Bay Against Salmon Cages (GBASC) Submission in support of Minister for Aquaculture, Food and the
Marine Michael Creeds decision to discontinue the Silver Kings Limited/MOWTI Licence T06/202 at Deenish
Co. Kerry.

According to the Friends of the Irish Environment documents attached with this submission, it seems that
Marine Harvest (MH)/MOWI are repeat offenders when it comes to overstocking/overharvesting at a number of
their Irish salmon farming sites.

If Minister Creed had not taken any action against MH/MOWI for overstocking/overharvesting, he would have
set a precedent whereby MOWTI or any other salmon farming company could ever be sanctioned in the future
for breaking the conditions of their licences, also it would be perceived by the public and rightly so, that
MH/MOWI were ignoring the authority of our state agencies that are tasked to regulate them.

Similarly if AL AB overturns the Ministers decision the same scenario will apply.

GBASC asks ALAB to reject the MH/MOWI appeal not to treat licence T06/202 as discontinued, for the
reasons outlined above.

According to the MH/MOWTI appeal document received by ALAB on the 9® May 2019, 385,000 juvenile
salmon are worth 13.7 million euro, so if MH/MOWI had overstocked/overharvested by 121% then this stock
would possibly be worth approximatly over 30 million euro.

GBASC wonder could consideration be given to the introduction of punitive financial penilties for breaking
licence conditions as are contained in the Norwegian aquaculture regulations.

In reply to the MH/MOWTI argument in their appeal document that tries to justify their
overstocking/overharvesting on the lack of new salmon farm licences, we would like to point out that there are
already 32,000 tonnes capacity salmon farming licences in the country and why would salmon farmers want
more licences, when they failed to keep enough fish alive in 2018 to reach over 12,000 tonnes.

GBASC believe that Minister Creed and his department are totally justified in not renewing or granting any
more salmon farming licences and the DCCAE document attached with this submission, plus the reply to the
Dail PQ mentioned below, proves our point in this regard.

According to a reply from Minister Creed to Cathrine Connolly TD in a Dail PQ ( Ref; 20261/19) on the
9/5/2019 there were, "15 notices to Treat due to elevated sea lice levels accross seven different sites. The sites
“are in Ardmore, Kﬂkleran Bay (1); Inver Bay (2) Ballinakill Harbour (1); Killary Harbour (1); Mulroy Bay (1);
Lough Swilly (1);

Accelerated harvests were undertaken at three sites in the following bays: -



Kilkieran Bay; Ballinakill Harbour; Inver Bay."

It seems. to GBASC that sea lice on most Irish salmon farms, including the three MOWI operated ones
mentioned above, are immune to all treatments and are now out of control and it is reprehensible that this
situation was allowed to occure at the most critical time during the 2019 migrating wild salmon and sea trout
runs, possibly resulting in further disasterous salmon and sea trout returns in future years to the rivers
mentioned in the DCCAE document supplied. With less and less salmon and sea trout in rivers along our west
coast as a result of sea lice infestations from salmon farms, this will have a negative effect on our tourist angling
industry which is worth 836 million euro to the Irish economy and responsible for over 11 thousand jobs.

As saving the environment is now on every responsible persons mind, it is now time that ALL open sea cage
salmon farming is closed down and moved to on land Closed Containment Systems (RAS) as a matter of
urgency, in the meantime all farmed salmon smolts should be micro-tagged to aid traceability as with other
farming enterprises, before they are transferred to sea cages.

ALAB, Please reject the MH/MOWI appeal.

On behalf of GBASC

Billy Smyth




PQ Ref: 20261/19

Reply By

12 noon on Wednesday 8" May
TD Asking

Catherine Connolly
Date for reply to Oireachtas

9/05/2019

To ask the Minister for Agriculture; Food and the Marine the actions being
taken to control sea lice levels at salmon farm sites which are having an
adverse effect on the successful survival of salmon and sea trout smolts or
kelts; and if he will make a statement on the matter.

BRIEFING NOTE

1) Sea Lice Control Protocols

The control protocols for the management of sea lice are operated by the Marine Institute on
behalf of the State. All stocks of fish are inspected by Marine Institute Inspectors on 14
occasions throughout the year. As part of this control strategy farm operators are required to

undertake treatments to control lice infestation levels once certain trigger levels are reached.

Mechanical methods of delousing are currently used in combating instances of Sea Lice. In
addition, several species of cleaner fish are used in Ireland as a method of controlling sea lice.
The cleaner fish supplement their diet by removing and eating the lice. This biological
method of control is very effective and can reduce the reliance on medicines to control sea

lice.



All of the medicines used for lice control in Ireland are PoMs (prescription only medicines)
which can only be used under Veterinary supervision and their use is regulated by the Health
Products Regulatory Authority (HPRA). This was the case in the three instances cited in the

reply to the PQ.

In certain circumstances treatments alone may not be the most appropriate strategy and in a

number of limited circumstances an accelerated harvest may be required.

These protocols are more advanced than those operated in other jurisdictions for the
following reasons:

) The inspection regime is totally independent of the industry.

o Data obtained as a result of inspection is published and made widely available.

) Treatment trigger levels are set at a low level.

The sea lice monitoring and control programme in Ireland has been acknowledged by the

Environment Directorate (DG Environment) of the EU Commission as representing

international best practice.

2) January to April 2019

Four monthly reports have issued by the Marine Institute to date in 2019. The reports
indicate the issuance of 15 Notices to Treat due to Elevated Sea Lice levels across seven
different sites. The sites are in Ardmore, in Kilkieran Bay (1); Inver Bay (2); Ballinakill

Harbour (1); Killary Habour (1); Mulroy Bay (1); Lough Swilly (1).



Accelerated harvests were undertaken at three sites in the following bays:

Kilkieran Bay; (December/January Report)
Ballinakill Harbour;

Inver Bay.

3) Correspondence from Department of Communications, Climate

Action & Environment

There has been some controversy recently in respect of correspondence issued by the

Department of Communications, Climate Action & Environment (DCCAE)

Following the recent standard dissemination of the Marine Institute’s sea lice report for
March 2019, DCCAE forwarded a series of specific queries to this Department in respect of
the control of sea lice at specific aquaculture sites. These queries were formulated by both

DCCAE and Inland Fisheries Ireland.

The Department referred the queries to the Marine Institute for assessment and comment. As
part of their detailed and site specific response, the Marine Institute concluded that the
measures taken by the salmon farms at each site have been effective in the control of sea lice
infestation on farmed Atlantic salmon in the Spring period.

The detailed response of the Marine Institute was forwarded to DCCAE on 11 April.

4) Sea Lice Control — Transparency of Procedures

As indicated above the sea lice controls in Ireland are more advanced than those in other

jurisdictions for the following reasons.



- The inspection regime is totally independent of the industry.
- Data obtained as a result of inspection is published and made widely available.

- Treatment trigger levels are set at a low level.

In addition to the above the Marine Institute publishes on an annual basis a National Survey

of Sea Lice on Fish Farms in Ireland report.

ENDS






Minister Muy@/@»«/{ /ag,.(é vy /oe/ Le)oud

The attached file concerns a breach of the conditions of a license for a hatchery facility in
Donegal by Marine Harvest. | regret the delay in forwarding it to you.

The line division, in a detailed submission at blue tab A, recommends revoking the license —
which would have very serious commercial consequences for the company. ASG Beamish
recommends (blue tab B) that the matter be addressed by amendment of the license.

Having looked in some detail at the papers on the file (including the two letters from the
company at green tabs 7 and 9), | agree with the latter recommendation, which seems the
more proportionate action as argued in Cecil’s submission.

You may'wish to discuss before reaching a final decision on how to proceed.

-

‘Aidan O’'Driscoll

23‘; September
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The attached case file refers to what appears to be a significant breach of the
stocking limit for smolts by Marine Harvest at a site in Beara Co Cork. You will

recall that we recently had another similar case with the same company at
another location.

m
Al
SM

The notes from Cecil Beamish and John Quinlan on the attached file set out the
evidence in this case in relation to overstocking, which seems clearcut.
However it is also apparent that we have a difficulty in that the license
specifies that the stocking limits relates to “smolts” and it is not
straightforward to prove that the overstocked fish were technically smolts.

Our licensing system also seems to lack any scalable penalties, making it
difficult to determine a proportionate penalty to the offence.

In the light of the above, the attached notes set out two possible courses of
action — discontinue the license or amend the license, if possible. | agree with
> the latter approach but think we should also seek a meeting with the company

at the most senior Ievel to set out very clearly how seriously we view these
issues.

p val by / discussion with Minister

idan O'Driscolk-

éO/ 1/17
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DCCAE and IFI Views and requirements - Marine Institute Report
on sealice levels on marine salmon farms during February 2019

“From June through to February, a figure of 2.0 egg bearing female lice (ovigerous lice) is
used as a trigger level for treatment. From March through to May, a figure of 0.5 egg bearing
female lice (ovigerous lice) is used as a trigger level for treatment.”

Ardmore & Creevin Sites

The November sea lice report records elevated sea lice levels at the Ardmore site in
Kilkieran Bay which would have resulted in a notice to treat instruction being issued by the
Marine Institute. In the December/January sea lice report, elevated sea lice levels were
again recorded at this site resulting in another notice to treat instruction being issued.

Bay Kilkieran Bay Kilkieran Bay | Donegal Bay | Donegal Bay
Ardmore Creevin

Site (Ovigerous) Ardmore (Ovigerous) | Creevin

Nov-18 1.62 23.52 1.48 6.15

Dec 18/Jan 19 | 0.63 25.36 1.97 10.95

Feb-19 1.29 25.07 4.37 28.26

As a result of these instructions, ovigerous or total mobile lice levels were not reduced by the
time of the February inspection. Total mobile lice levels have remained at over 20 lice per
fish for three successive months. This extremely high mobile lice count will result in a large
number of ovigerous egg bearing lice developing in March, during the critical period when
wild salmon and sea trout runs take place. Under the Department of Agriculture, Fisheries
and Food “Strategy for Improved Pest Control in Irish salmon farms, 2008”, it was proposed
that a feature of the strategy to enhance the control of sea lice infestations on Irish salmon
farms should be the creation of a “real time” management regime. This regime was intended to
vigorously deal with failures to control sea lice infestations on a case-by-case basis. The lice
management regime is designed to bring progressively tougher actions to bear on the
infestation to ensure the highest possible level of compliance. If after a number of attempts,
satisfactory control has not been achieved, the cell may move to recommend accelerated
harvesting. DCCAE requires that accelerated harvesting should now be enacted at the
Ardmore site due to the inability to control sea lice since November 2018.

Similarly, after elevated lice levels were recorded the Creevin site in Donegal Bay in the
December/ January inspection, a notice to treat was issued and elevated lice levels, more
than double those recorded in the previous month, were recorded in February. DCCAE
requires that accelerated harvesting should take place at this site before the onset of
wild salmonid smolt runs.

Fraochoilean Site, Ballinakill Bay

The Fraochoilean site in Ballinakill Bay was fallow in November 2018 and Atlantic Salmon,
2018 S1/2 were present in January 2019. By February 2019, ovigerous lice levels had
increased three fold and total mobile lice levels of over 50 lice per fish were recorded. This is
an unprecedented increase in sea lice levels over a two month period and DCCAE requires
that accelerated harvesting should commence immediately at this site. This site is
within 3km of the Dawros river and has been the subject of accelerated harvesting on two
previous occasions due to inability to control sea lice. DCCAE/IFI are concerned that fish
with a pre-existing lice population may have been moved to this site in December /
January and require confirmation of same.



Fraochoilean

(Ovigerous) Fraochoilean
Nov-18 Fallow Fallow
Dec 18 /Jan 19 0.67 9.44
Feb-19 2.15 50.08

Rosroe Site, Killary Harbour

It should be noted that following an appeal to the Aquaculture Licence Appeals Board the
licence issued to the company received by fisheries on the 4th February 2000 at this site
under Special conditions 4 (e) specifically stated that average levels of egg-bearing lice shall
be kept as close to zero as possible but shall not exceed 0.3 lice per fish during the critical
period of February to May and a level of 0.9 per fish during other periods of the year.
Therefore the thresholds for this site are lower and controls should be more stringent.

Sea lice levels have increased progressively at the Rosroe site since November 2018
and DCCAE requires immediate action by DAFM to effectively control lice prior to the
salmon and sea trout smolt run from the National Salmonid Index Catchment on the
river Erriff.

Rosroe (Ovigerous) Rosroe
Nov-18 1.27 9.39
Dec 18 /Jan 19 0.71 4.81
Feb-19 0.63 15.99

The months of March, April and May are the critical period for salmon and sea trout smolt
migration to sea and sea lice trigger levels are lower during this period to protect migrating
smolts. It is therefore critical that lice levels are adequately controlled at all salmon farm sites
during this critical period to prevent lice induced mortality of wild salmonids. DCCAE and IFI
are particularly perturbed that lice levels in these key bays around the coast and in
particularly in the Connemara wild sea trout fisheries from Louisburgh to Galway bay are at
such a high level during the critical period. This period is when the important juvenile salmon
and sea trout migrate to sea either as small smolts of as recovering kelts and need an
environment as free of juvenile lice as possible.

This is why it has always been stressed that minimising lice levels coming into winter is the
best method of preventing lice explosions in spring. Unfortunately for the rivers in the Killary
(Delphi and the Erriff) and Ballinakill bay (the Kylemore or Dawros river system) and Kilkerrin
bay - Gowla and Invermore systems it is clear that high lice levels existed during the smolt
run. As sea trout live and feed in the bays around the coast this augurs very poorly for a
successful survival of sea trout smolts for 2019.

DCCAE requires an urgent update (by 12 April 2019) on what action the Department of
Agriculture Food and the Marine is taking to resolve these situations and a response
to our requirements set out above, which relate to our statutory responsibilities for
the conservation of salmon and sea trout.

Denis Maher
Denis Maher | Principal | Head of Inland Fisheries Division

Department of Communications, Climate Action & Environment
Elm House, Earlsvale Road, Cavan, Co Cavan, H12 A8H7, Ireland
www.dccae.gov.ie | @dcenr

T:+353 6783053 | M:087 2565927 | E: denis.maher@dccae.ie



http://www.dccae.gov.ie/
https://www.google.com/maps/@53.9959127,-7.3582923,20z
http://www.dccae.gov.ie/
https://twitter.com/dcenr
mailto:denis.maher@dccae.ie
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